Pocono Township BOC Agenda February 2, 2026

ISocone-denwnship

NNSYLVAR

POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
February 2, 2026 | 6:00 p.m.

205 Old Mill Rd, Tannersville, PA
Zoom Participation
https://lus06web.zoom.us/s/86400280589

Meeting ID: 864 0028 0589
Passcode: 488362

Open Meeting
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Announcements —.
An executive session was held prior to this meeting to discuss personnel and equipment.

Public Comment-

Limited to 3 minutes per person, please state your name and if you are a Pocono Township Resident.
Presentations

Swearing-in ceremony of two new officers, Dustin Rentschler & Daniel Campagna, by District
Magistrate, Honorable Daniel Kresge.

Members 1st Waiver presentation (Possible Action Item)
Hearings
Resolutions

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-09 LDP 1450 — 116 Hilliard Lane Easement (Possible Action
item)

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-10 LDP 1445 — Mountain Edge Townhouse (Possible Action
item) Discussion: Sidewalk waiver/deferral and Open Space waiver (Possible Action items)

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-11 Monroe County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Municipal
Adoption. (Possible Action Item)


https://us06web.zoom.us/s/86400280589

Pocono Township BOC Agenda February 2, 2026

Consent Agenda

= Motion to approve a consent agenda of the following items: (Possible Action Item)

o Old business consisting of the minutes of the January 20, 2025 regular meeting of the
Board of Commissioners.

o Old business consisting of the minutes of the January 5, 2025 Re-Organization meeting
of the Board of Commissioners.

o Old business consisting of the minutes of the January 5, 2025 regular meeting of the
Board of Commissioners.

o Financial transactions through February 2, 2026 as presented, including ratification of
expenditures in the amount of $398,661.45 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer
Operations, Gross Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund. Discussion: (Action Items)

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

Report of the President

Ellen Gnandt

= Solar Field update

= Historical District Limitations

= Motion to waive the Pavilion fees for Boy Scout Troop 85 for Pavilion #1 on August 16t 2026.
(Possible Action Item)

» Motion to adopt Revised Decorum Policy (Potential Action Item)

= Discussion: Core5 water test results to residents in the Blast Zone

Matt Long — Vice-Chairman

=  Amusement Tax Update

= Motion to authorize the Solicitor to advertise the proposed ordinance forming an Environmental
Advisory Council (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to amend the public comment policy to allow only Pocono Township residents,
stakeholders & local businesses to comment on agenda items when deliberating (Possible
Action Item)

= Motion to authorize solicitor to advertise a public hearing for the Pocono Township Data Center
Ordinance (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to authorize solicitor to advertise a public hearing for the Police Cost Recovery Ordinance
(Possible Action Item)

Commissioner Comments

Natasha Leap — Commissioner
= Motion to approve the reduction of the construction escrow for Turkey Hill Minit Market, Store
#274 in the amount of $70,465.03. (Possible Action Item)

Mike Velardi — Commissioner
= Further pursue 2A Sanctuary status (Possible Action Item)
= Motion to remove Charles Keppler IV as parliamentarian (Possible Action Item)
= Remarks on unfit behavior of commissioner Keppler
= Motion to approve Mechanic stipend to Michael Stettler jr. as per non-uniform union CBA
(inspection license) (Possible Action Item)



Pocono Township BOC Agenda February 2, 2026

Charles Keppler — Commissioner
= Discussion of public option for trash disposal.
= Motion to maintain the 2025 municipal tax rate of 3.429 Mils for the 2026 tax year. (Possible
Action Item)

Reports

Zoning — SFM Consulting
Police — Chief James Wagner (Second Meeting of Month)

Events — Jenn Gambino (1’st Meeting of Month)
= 2026 Events update

Township Manager’s Report — Jerrod Belvin

Police Wing Update

April meeting date change due to PSATS Conference. (Possible Action Item)

Municipality Commitment for Pick up the Pocono’s scheduled for April 25, 2026

New Grant Award

Motion to purchase 3 Mio-Vision adaptive systems & installation from Signal Service not to exceed
80,000. (Possible Action Item)

= Core 5 Blasting Schedule for the week

Public Works/Sewer Report — Patrick Briegel

= Sewer Business Update
=  MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions
=  Current Public Works Projects

Township Engineer Report — T&M Associates

= Sewer Business Update

= Learn Road Roundabout cost update
= TASA Project

= TLC walking bridge.

Township Solicitor Report — Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P.

= Sewer Business Update

= General legal update

»= Motion to authorize Solicitor to advertise Ordinance hearing to repeal Ordinance 2025-03 LERTA.
(Possible Action Item)

Adjournment































































TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2026-09

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF THE CARL E.
SLUTTER - 116 HILLIARD LANE EASEMENT REVISION PLAN

WHEREAS, the applicant, Carl E. Slutter, submitted a plan application titled “Plan of
Proposed Easement for Carl E. Slutter” (the “Plan™). The Applicant is proposing to
eliminate an existing 15 foot wide private access street extending through his property known
as Monroe County Tax Parcel No. 12.7D.1.4-1 to Monroe County Tax Parcel No. 12.7D.1.4-
2, which is also owned by the Applicant. A new 20 foot wide driveway easement is proposed

and located in a slightly different configuration to provide access to Tax Parcel No. 12.7D.1.4-
2; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters
dated October 15, 2025, December 16, 2025 and January 5, 2026; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desire to grant the conditional
approval of the Plan, subject to the following.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of
Pocono Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the “Plan of Proposed Easement for Carl E. Slutter” as shown on the plan prepared by
Policelli Associates, Inc., dated September 2, 2025, as revised, be hereby approved with the
following conditions and provided the plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and
approval of the Township Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1. The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated October 15, 2025, December 16, 2025 and January 5, 2026.

2. The applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the Plan, including but not limited to

any outstanding plan account charges and all professional services fees, prior to the recording
of the Plan.

3. The applicant shall obtain all required permits and approvals from other governmental agencies
prior to presenting the Plan for signatures.

4. The applicant shall provide the requisite number of plans which are signed and notarized by
the owner and sealed by the engineer.

5. The applicant shall meet all conditions of the final plan approval, and Plan shall be recorded
within twelve (12) months of Conditional final plan approval, and agrees that if such
conditions are not met, the Conditional final plan approval will be considered void.









TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2026-10

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF MOUNTAIN EDGE VILLAGE COMMUNITY TOWNHOUSE UNITS
57A-H PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Percudani House III, LP, submitted a plan application titled
“Land Development Plan for Mountain Edge Village Community Townhouse Units
57A-H” (the “Plan”). The Applicant proposes to construct a new 8-unit townhouse building
at the end of Ski Side Lane located within Mountain’s Edge at Camelback. The property is
located in the RD Recreation Zoning District and is known as Monroe County Tax ID Nos.
12.10B2.1.1 and 12.117167; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters
dated May 1, 2025, September 8, 2025 and December 18, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission recommended conditional plan
approval at its meeting held on January 12, 2026; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desires to take action on this Plan.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the following requests for modification from the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance are hereby granted:

1. SALDO Section 390-29.E.(3). — The survey shall not have an error of closure greater
than one in 10,000 ft and shall include a boundary closure report. The applicant shall not
be required to submit an overall boundary survey with boundary closure reports since the
proposed improvements are located over 300 feet from the closest part of the boundary.

2. SALDO Section 390-29.J.(1)(c). Truck turning movements for a WB-50 Truck shall be

provided. Applicant shall not be required to provide truck turning movements for a WB-50
truck.

3. SALDO Section 390-49.A(4) — Monuments at Outbound Locations. Applicant shall not
be required to place monuments at all outbound locations because it is proposing a
relatively minor disturbance of an existing large, developed site.

4. SALDO Section 390-50.D.(5) — “The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin

embankments shall be four horizontals to one vertical.” Applicant is proposing a slope of
3:1




































January 20, 2026

Resolutions

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to approve Resolution 2026-02 granting
an extension of 12 months to Brookstead Apartments Resolution Conditions. Discussion: Hanover
Engineers explained the reason for the extension. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to table the four resolutions that were set
for approval on the Swiftwater Solar project. Jon Tresslar stated they didn’t need resolutions. Gina
Loyek asked if section 106 was completed and submitted on this project due to it being done on
Historic Federal Lands.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to approve Resolution 2026-07 Approving
the payment of certain township bills and expenses pending the amendment if any of the 2026
Pocono Township Budget. Jim Pelegrini inquired regarding the changes made to the budget, what
they are and if they will be highlighted. All in favor. Motion carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to approve Resolution 2026-08 Approving
the Pennvest Financial Assistance Application with regard to construction, rehabilitation, and/or
extension of the water/sewer system. Discussion; Ellen Gnandt asked regarding the Letter of
Responsibility. Leo DeVito explained. Ellen Gnandt asked regarding attachment C letter L. Jerrod
Belvin explained that we are under contract with PFM. They will be attending the next meeting.
Elizabeth Cassiano asked regarding the sewer extension and where it's being extended to. Pat
Briegel addressed her concerns. All in favor. Motion carried.

Consent Agenda

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler, for final 2025 appropriations prior to
approving bills. All in favor. Motion carried.
Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to Not approve the minutes of January 5.
2026 prior to changes being made. Discussion: Matt Long stated that during the meeting there
was a serious discussion regarding a Sunshine Act Violation and asked for the solicitor's
comment to be included in the minutes. Further discussion was had regarding the narrative of the
minutes Jerrod Belvin stated that this is why we need a policy in place. We have been directed to
change the way they are done many times with no clear direction. Ellen Gnandt made a motion,
seconded by Matt Long, to table the minutes until the next meeting. All in favor. Motion carried.
= Old business consisting of the minutes of the January 5, 2025 regular meeting and Re-
Organization meeting of the Board of Commissioners.
= Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to approve the Financial transactions
through January 20, 2026 as presented, including ratification of expenditures in the amount of
$714,742.46 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer Operations, Gross Payroll,
Construction Fund. All in favor. Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

Commissioner Comments

Ellen Gnandt — President

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler to table Meeting Decorum Policy. Public
Meeting Notice (Signage), Public Comment Rules, Meeting Conduct Policy Discussion: Natasha Leap
asked if the entire idea will be scrapped. Ellen Gnandt stated no, just some minor changes to look at.
Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, nay; Mike Velardi, nay; Matt Long, aye: Charles Keppler,
aye. Motion carried (3-2).

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to advertise budget hearing date of Feb-06,

2026 at 5pm. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi to appoint Gina Treasurer for an additional

stipend of $8,000 /year. All in favor. Motion carried.
Solar Field update — No construction is going on at the present time. They will be recording their
plans
















January 5, 2026

Jim Pellegrini (Resident) — expressed his strong support for retaining Jerrod Belvin as Township
Manager, noting his accessibility, quick responses, and significant contributions to the township's success
and financial savings. Mr. Napp stated that he is floored the Jerrod’s reappointment is even in question
and affirmed his dedication and value to the community.

Frank Greeley (Resident) — congratulated everyone. He also expressed his support for Jerrod Belvin after
working with him directly. He stated that Jerrod is responsive and gets answers. He also voiced his
support for Jim Wagner and Pat Briegel.

Josh Knapp (Resident) — congratulations to Ellen, Charles, and Matt on with regard to getting elected and
hopes for good things to come for Pocono Township.

Terry VanBritsom Martin (Chestnuthill Township) congratulated everyone on the board. She emphasized
Jerrod Belvins’ devotion to the township and that he should be able to continue within his role as township
manager.

An executive session was held prior to this meeting regarding personnel and litigation.

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler, to set the Board of Commissioners’ meetings
for the 1% and 3™ Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m. If a reqularly scheduled meeting falls on a holiday.
the meeting will be held the next day on Tuesday. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to appoint Charles Keppler as a Parliamentarian
for the Board of Commissioners. Josh Knapp stated that he hopes that this year is a lot more restrained in
what the commissioners do from the bench, in terms of talking with the public and each other. All in favor.
Motion carried.

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint the firm of Broughal & DeVito as
Pocono Township Solicitor for township, sewer business, labor issues, and planning at $165/hr. All in
favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint T&M Engineering as the Pocono
Township Engineer. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt questioned the need to retain the current township treasurer, noting that Gina Zuvich, as
fiscal administrator, already performs key treasurer duties like budget management and bookkeeping.
The suggestion was made to appoint Regina Zuvich as treasurer, pending discussion with her about
accepting the position and determining appropriate compensation.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to appoint Regina Zuvich as Pocono Township
Treasurer pending her acceptance and the extra stipend be determined at a future meeting. Charles
Keppler stated that he feels there is some value to have another set of eyes from a financial accounting
standpoint in the form of a third party. Ellen affirmed that the township does get audited by outside firms.
Natasha doesn’t feel comfortable making the motion without discussion with Regina first. Natasha Leap
made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to table the Treasurer position. All in favor. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to reappoint Jim Maloney to the Civil Service
Commission for a 6-year term. Charles Keppler stated that he has never met Mr. Maloney and is not
familiar with his qualifications. He feels that anyone being appointed or re-appointed should be at this
meeting in person to interview for the job. Matt Long asked if Charles Keppler was saying he wanted to
post it and tell them to apply. Charles stated yes, he feels that most of the appointments should be
opened up to the public, to people who “show an interest” in order to get a diverse pool of applicants.
“That the way we are going to STAFF the Township with the best people in my opinion.” “| don't think just
keeping someone on because they've been on when they're not even showing up for their appointment
again, | don’t think that that's the best path forward for the township, in my opinion.” “And that goes for
ALL the appointments here. Natasha Leap stated that the appointments for the Civil Service Commission
were discussed for two meetings prior to the gentleman coming in and applying and then being
appointed. In addition, they came with approval from the Chief like everything is done. Jerrod Belvin




January 5, 2026

explained the role of the Civil Service Commission. Charles Keppler again stated that he would like all re-
appointments be put out to the public. Maureen Madden asked if they are paid positions or volunteer.
Jerrod Belvin stated volunteer. Maureen Madden stated that Mr. Maloney has been doing this volunteer
job for 6 years and has expressed his desire to continue in the same capacity. She stated that should
account for something. Ms. Madden recommended the township should stick with good people who care
about their jobs. Chief Wagner stated that it is a VOLUNTEER position and is exceedingly difficult to get
people to give of their time freely with the dedication they have shown. Monica Gerrity stated that we
need to move forward as a government. She confirmed that she remembers seeing advertisements for
volunteers and nobody comes forward. She suggested to Mr. Keppler that he should have been at the
Civil Service to meet Mr. Maloney. If people are interested in the future, they need to step up to be
considered for the next time there is an opening. Mr. Keppler once again stated his opinion on this matter.
Mike Velardi stated that prior practice was to re-appoint the volunteers who have committed their time
and done a good job for the township. They should not have to come forward and beg to do a FREE job.
Jim Pellegrini asked what the impact would be. Ellen Gnandt explained that impact. Charles Keppler
continued to state his opinion. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, aye, Mike Velardi, aye, Matt
Long, aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried 4-1.

Matt Long asked about the Zoning Hearing Board seat that has expired. Jerrod Belvin stated that Lew
Ginsberg is still interested in continuing to serve on the ZHB. Natasha Leap made a motion, seconded by
Mike Velardi to appoint Lew Ginsberg to the Zoning Hearing Board. Charles Keppler stated, “would you
care to ask if there’s anyone in the audience who would like to consider serving in this position?” He
asked what it entails. Leo DeVito stated that they typically meet at 5 pm once a month depending on the
number of hearings are scheduled. Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler to table the
Zoning Hearing Board appointment. Roll Call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, nay; Mike Velardi, nay:
Matt Long, aye; Charles Keppler, aye. Motion carries 3-2.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler, to post the vacancy for the zoning hearing
board on social media. Natasha Leap clarified that it's not a vacancy where the board is choosing not to
reappoint a man who has served in on this board for over 10 years, has been impartial and neutral in his
decisions and not that he resigned. Gina Loyak stated, “If I'm volunteering for these positions that you
guys are talking about, and I've given 10 years, six years, to you and I've done a great job, and just that
this has come up for discussion, I'm out. I'm not going to do it anymore.” Matt Long stated his concerns
about the individual and that he is grateful for his service. Charles Keppler stated that there's an
impression that there’s a lot of inside game that goes on here in Pocono Township, where it's the same
people who have been running things for an exceptionally long time. Gary Gallery clarified that the open
seat is an Alternate one. Terry VanBritsom from Chestnuthill Township stated that she agrees with
Charles Keppler. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, nay; Mike Velardi, nay; Matt Long, aye:
Charles Keppler, aye.

Leo DeVito explained the roll of a Vacancy Chair as in the event a commissioner steps down, resigns or
no longer can serve, the current existing board has 30 days to make an appointment. If they cannot by
majority, then the vacancy chair is called in and this person will act as Chairman if the seat is not filled
within 15 days for some reason, it will then go to court. Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen
Gnandt, to appoint Jerry Lastowski to the position of Chair to the Vacancy Board. Natasha Leap & Mike
Velardi asked if either party were in attendance to express if they do or don’t want the seat. Has Tom
stated that after 12 years he no longer wants it? Maureen Madden stated we're not really posting these
positions, are we? We're just kind of putting other people in instead that some people know and some
people don’t. Not sure how this action is rectifying the idea of people being in there too long. She stated
that some people are there for a long time because they are doing a good job and to remove them
doesn’t seem fair. Natasha Leap stated that they should open it for people to apply just like for all of the
other positions. That would be the fair and transparent way. Maureen Madden asked about rules and if
you need to live in Pocono Township to comment about the meetings. Matt Long stated that the chair has
only been used once by the township and feels Mr. Lastowski would be a perfect person for the position.
Natasha Leap stated “he very well may be, but you're letting everyone else apply for there positions, and
you're opening their positions. Dawn Eilber said she thinks Jerry would do a great job. Josh Knapp stated

3






January 5, 2026

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to approve the following as the approved the
following depositories, ESSA, First Keystone Community Bank, First Northern Bank and Trust, PLIGIT,
Citizens Bank and Wayne Bank. All in favor. Motion carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to approve the following signatories and put them
onto the bank accounts. Matt Long, Charles Keppler, Ellen Gnandt, Natasha Leap, Mike Velardi, Jerrod
Belvin, Regina Zuvich. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Burkheimer as our tax collector for
EIT and LST tax collector. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to set the mileage reimbursement rate at the
IRS rate for 2026 which is 72 and a half cents per mile. All in favor. Motion carried.

Charles Keppler made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint SFM Consulting as the Pocono
Township Zoning Office Service. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi to appoint SFM Consulting to provide
commercial building code services at a rate of 70% of the building permit fees. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi to appoint SFM Consulting to provide residential
building code services at a rate of 70% of building permit fees. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Helen Beers as Pocono Township
Sewage Enforcement Officer. All in favor. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to appoint Jerrod Belvin as Pocono Township
Secretary. Matt Long asked what it entails. Jerrod stated it's who certifies and bonds the minutes for the
meetings, Jerrod stated that he and Krisann work together on minutes. Charles Keppler stated his discord
with the minutes provided by the township. Ellen Gnandt asked for an overview of what has to be in the
minutes. What is mandatory is any official action by the board. (Motion and Vote). The rest is at the
discretion of the board. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap. aye; Mike Velardi, aye; Matt Long,
aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap made a motion, seconded by Matt Long, to appoint Krisann MacDougall as Pocono
Township Assistant Secretary. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha leap, aye: Mike Velardi, aye: Matt
Long, aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried.

Natasha Leap made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to appoint Todd Whitezman as solicitor to the
Pocono Township Zoning Hearing Board. All in favor. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to appoint Krisann MacDougall as zoning
hearing board secretary. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye: Natasha Leap, aye; Mike Velardi, aye: Matt Long,
aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried.

Ellen Gnandt made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi to appoint Krisann MacDougall as recording
secretary for the board of commissioners and planning commission. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye: Natasha
Leap, aye; Mike Velardi, aye; Matt Long, aye: Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried.

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Jerrod Belvin as the Open Records
Officer. Charles Keppler stated that he made a number of Open Records requests in the past year and
felt it was difficult to get them in a timely manner. Matt Long asked if it was typical for a manager to be the
Open Records Officer as well. Leo DeVito stated yes. The township receives an excessive number of
requests, on average 260 in 2025. Ellen Gnandt stated that we are to respond within 5 business days.
Jerrod Belvin explained that the 30-day extension was enacted with Mr. Keppler due to policy of
certification of audio at the following board meeting. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, aye: Mike
Velardi, aye; Matt Long, aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried 4-1.




January 5, 2026

Matt L ong made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to appoint Krisann MacDougall as the Alternate
Open Records Officer. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, aye; Mike Velardi. aye: Matt Long,
aye; Charles Keppler, nay. Motion carried 4-1.

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Jerrod Belvin as representative to
Monroe County Tax committee with a term to expire December 31, 2026. Ellen Gnandt asked if it would
be a better fit for Mary Reiley, Tax Collector. Jerrod Belvin said he would ask her if she were interested in
the position. Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Mike Velardi, to table the motion. All in favor. Motion
carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Jerrod Belvin as the township
Emergency Management Coordinator. All in favor. Motion carried.

Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint Samantha Rispoli as assistant
township Emergency Management Coordinator. All in favor. Motion carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Natasha Leap, to appoint the Pocono Township Volunteer Fire
Department members as 2026 Fire Police as requested by Chief Jordan Merring. All in favor. Motion
carried.

Public Comment

Claire Learn congratulated Jerrod and everyone else on the panel. She described the struggling condition
of three local cemeteries after church closures and limited funds. They requested township assistance
and community volunteers for cleanup and maintenance, emphasizing the cemeteries’ visibility and
importance to the township’s image. She shared contact information for those willing to help.

Adjournment — Mike Velardi made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to adjourn the meeting 8:19
p.m. All in favor. Motion carried.










January 5, 2026

stated that most professionals have one. She feels the board needs to be more respectful. The social
media should have a policy to be followed prior to being posted.

Discussion of a possible motion to have regularly scheduled work sessions during the week prior to
regular meeting to update board on happenings and facilitate regular meeting agenda prep. Date and
time to be decided. Natasha Leap suggested that minutes be taken at any future workshops along
with recordings to make it fair to the public.

Solar Field update an inspection was done prior to the holidays. They’re currently waiting for more
solar panels to be delivered.

Warehouse blasting update — Jerrod Belvin will be forwarding maps in an email following this
meeting. Jerrod also stated that the sewer pipe will be eight inches and an 18-inch storm water pipe.
They plan to start blasting on the eighth. Discussion was had by the public and board.

Matt Long - Vice Chair

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Charles Keppler, to adjust public comment policy to allow 3
minutes for both agenda & non-agenda items. All in favor. Motion carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to authorize Township Engineer to draft Data
Center Ordinance. Discussion was had between the board, Township Engineer and public. All in
favor. Motion carried.

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to authorize the solicitor and zoning code
office to draft a hotel, motel and annual inspection and licensing ordinance to address health, safety,
and welfare issues. A lengthy discussion was had between the board, solicitor and public. Roll call:
Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, nay; Mike Velardi, nay; Matt Long, aye; Charles Keppler, aye.
Motion carried 3-2

Matt Long made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to authorize the Township Solicitor to draft a
Police Cost Recovery Ordinance. A very lengthy discussion was had between the board, solicitor and
public. Roll call: Ellen Gnandt, aye; Natasha Leap, aye; Mike Velardi, nay; Matt Long, aye; Charles
Keppler, aye. Motion carried 4-1

Matt Long discussed the concerns that the amusement tax, particularly on Stay and Play packages,
may not be collected properly, which is significant since it is the township's primary allowable tax.
While a formal letter of engagement was previously authorized to begin auditing amusement tax
payees, the speaker suggests first obtaining a quote from the auditor to estimate the cost of auditing
the top taxpayers. They propose that, before initiating a potentially expensive audit, the township
should request an informational meeting with those businesses to try to obtain the necessary data
voluntarily, in hopes of clarifying tax practices and ensuring the township receives all revenue owed.
Jerrod Belvin stated that we received a quote back. We are looking to not exceed $40,000. Lost
revenue could reach 7 figures. An in-depth discussion was had on this matter between the board and
solicitor.

Natasha Leap — Commissioner — spoke regarding her desire to have workshops to teach the general
public information on the Planning Commission, ZHB, Variances, Special Exceptions. She feels that there
is a very large disconnect.

Mike Velardi — Commissioner Suggested declaring Pocono Township a 2" Amendment Sanctuary
Township. He feels the Township does not need a chicken ordinance. Discussion was had by the board
and public on this matter. Mike Velardi asked the public to consider Pennsylvania adopting an electoral
college system in order to have the smaller communities represented in the same capacity as the larger
cities when voting with regard to the Senate Election.

Charles Keppler - Commissioner

Charles Keppler commented on Chickens having been a contentious issue in the township for
months, with ongoing debates and dissatisfaction about proposed ordinances. While the speaker
personally supports legalization, they stress the importance of public input in shaping any new rules,
given concerns about noise, cleanliness, and the potential for chickens roaming freely as the
township grows. To address this, Charles Keppler made a motion, seconded by Ellen Gnandt, to
schedule a publicly advertised workshop so residents can share opinions and help shape the final
chicken ordinance. Matt Long reminded everyone that there was a chicken ordinance drawn up and












of those businesses. That's the first thing second | feel that to send an email to the
township, threatening us. In my opinion, this is, this is a threat. He's saying, If | were to
participate in any votes with which he is a party or that he is a party to

he would sue the township.

That's not right now. He filed this lawsuit after | was elected Commissioner. The precedent
that this would set is that if anyone wanted to prevent a particular member of this Board of
Commissioners for participating in a vote, he. It, all they would have to do is file a lawsuit
against them and claim that that individual is biased. | believe that this would set an
extraordinarily dangerous precedent, because, | mean, for obvious reasons, if we are up
here, if we're up here to serve the public and to serve their interests, and you know, things
may get heated on the campaign trail, but that doesn't represent bias on anyone's part. |
maintain that | have never accused Commissioner, why not of anything that he did not in
fact, do | maintain that his participation in the roundabout vote was wrong. Or, I'm sorry, the
fact that the roundabout was awarded to his business was wrong. | also maintain that. |
mean, it continues to be the case that he did not disclose his conflicts of interest prior to
voting on them. He just he abstained from the vote, but he did not disclose the nature of his
conflict of interest. These things are wrong. The public needs to be able to trust their
government. They need to be able to come into this room, sit down, watch these meetings,
and not find out later that you know people on this board are you know, involved in
business interests that you know they're perhaps abstaining from, but not voting, but you
know, still involved with because, you know people up here on this board, they're friendly
with each other, and this is why, you know, former officials are not supposed to, you know,
represent, you know, entities before this board, after they leave office, because they, they it
can, it can sway the vote. And so | think that this email is totally inappropriate. | think that
this email, it these sorts of things. | believe they debrief public trust. Because if you know,
business owners are going to be sending us threatening emails, trying to, in my opinion,
threatening emails trying to, you know, get people not to participate in votes that that just
completely destroys our democratic process. It erodes it at its very core, and it's it's wrong
and and so | just wanted to make that brief statement, because | was very troubled by this
email, and | don't think it's right, and | do not intend to abstain from any vote having to do
with Brian, because to do so would set a terrible, terrible precedent that would allow any
business owner, any individual, to to stifle this board and to to silence Valley criticism of
them. So that's all | wanted to say. If anyone else on the board would like to say anything,

2:42:58

Natasha Leap: | have something to say about that. So | would like the record to reflect an
email that | sent this afternoon that | do believe that a violation of the Sunshine Law was




































. Engaging in physical actions, noises, or gestures that prevent the Board or other
speakers from being heard or from conducting Township business;

. Harassing or intimidating conduct directed at any individual that rises to the level
of material disruption;

. Repeatedly speaking on matters unrelated to Township business during a
designated public comment period after being directed to remain on topic.

Material disruption is behavior that substantially impedes, interrupts, or prevents the
governing body from carrying out the business of the meeting or denies others a reasonable
opportunity to participate, after a warning when practicable. Content of speech alone shall not be
grounds for a finding of disruption. Strong, critical, or unpopular viewpoints, including allegations
concerning Township actions or officials, are permitted so long as they are expressed in a manner
that does not materially disrupt the meeting.

Allegations and Accusations

Speakers are encouraged to direct comments to Township actions, policies, and matters
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Statements alleging illegal, unethical, discriminatory, or
improper conduct by identified individuals shall not be restricted based on viewpoint or subject
matter, but may be ruled out of order only if delivered in a manner that is repetitious, harassing, or
materially disruptive to the meeting.

Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to require advance Board authorization for
public comment or to prohibit public discussion of matters of public concern.

Removal for Disruptive Conduct

If an individual persists in materially disruptive conduct after receiving a warning, the
Presiding Officer may order the individual removed from the meeting for the remainder of the
session. Removal shall be based solely on conduct, not on the content or viewpoint of speech.

In cases involving an immediate threat to safety or the ability to continue the meeting,
removal may occur without prior warning.

Removal of a Commissioner under this Policy shall be limited to removal from the meeting
for the remainder of the session and shall not constitute removal from office.

The Board may refer conduct to law enforcement for evaluation solely to determine
whether it constitutes a violation of applicable law.

Applicability

This Policy applies to Commissioners, appointed board and commission members,
Township officers and employees, and members of the public while attending or participating in a
Township meeting.






















































Https://broughalanddevito.sharepoint.com/Shared Documents/Broughal and Devito
SharePoint/Data/DOC/ANTHONY/LD/Pocono Twsp/Ordinances/2026/Police Cost Recovery/Police cost Recovery
Ordinance 01.08.26.docx

POCONO TOWNSHIP
MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

ORDINANCE NO. 2026-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF POCONO,

COUNTY OF MONROE, COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF POCONO TOWNSHIP, PART II,
GENERAL LEGISLATION; ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 290, POLICE SERVICES
COST RECOVERY; AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF
ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT HEREWITH

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the
Township of Pocono, Monroe County, Pennsylvania (the “Township”), its Board of
Commissioners (the “BOC™) desires to amend its code of Ordinances to add Chapter 290 Police
Services Cost Recovery; and

WHEREAS, the BOC has determined certain private properties require a
disproportionate amount of police service in order to maintain order and public peace, to restrain
unlawful conduct thereon and to stop public disturbances, such that there are less police
personnel and resources available for other locations, emergencies, and duties in the Township;
and

WHEREAS, Such extraordinary police services at such properties places a
disproportionate and unfair burden upon the citizens and taxpayers of the Township;

WHEREAS, Owners and/or property managers derive a benefit from such police
services; and

WHEREAS, Owners and/or property managers have a responsibility to manage their
properties to minimize required police services to maintain order and public peace, to restrain
unlawful conduct thereon and to stop public disturbances

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the Board of
Commissioners of Pocono Township, Monroe County, Pennsylvania and it is hereby ENACTED
AND ORDAINED by virtue of the power vested in the Board of Commissioners by the First-
Class Township Code as follows:

SECTION I. The Township of Pocono, Monroe County, Pennsylvania Code Ordinances; Part II,
General Legislation; is hereby amended by adding the following:

“Chapter 290 Police Services Cost Recovery

§ 290-1. Purpose and intent.
The BOC finds and determines that:



















































	2-2-26_BOC_Agenda.pdf
	2-2-26_BOC_Agenda_Full_Packet.pdf
	doc04933720260130144932.pdf
	doc04933820260130145024.pdf




